
To:  Salisbury Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
From:  Salisbury Housing Trust, Inc. 
 
Date:  June 13, 2024 
 
Re:  Response to “Follow-up from the Public Hearing of June 3, 2024” submitted by Michael 

W. Klemens, PhD 
 
Overview: 
In light of the comments and feedback by both the Planning & Zoning Commission and 
members of the public at the public hearing on June 3rd, we have submitted a revised site plan 
that does the following: 

• Retains and protects the trees on the site including the two large white oak trees; 
• Retains an area in the front of the property that would continue to be owned and 

managed by the town. As such it will continue to be up to the town to use this area as 
an informal parking area as it functions now or the town could decide in the future to 
turn this part into a town park; and 

• Retains an area in the back of the property that would continue to be owned and 
managed by the town as an open space. 

 
In order to accommodate the above three requests that were made at the public hearing and 
create two affordable homeownership opportunities on this site we will need to divide the site 
into three pieces as show below. These three pieces would not be subject to subdivision under 
CGS 8-25 because we currently have one building lot and would retain one building lot- the 
other two pieces of the parcel will be for the purposes of conservation and municipal use as 
allowed by CGS 8-25.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The focus of this application is for the use of “Piece 2” of this parcel where we proposing two 
homes on this piece under the town’s Multifamily Housing Overlay (MFHO) zone regulations. 
Whatever happens on the other pieces will continue to be up to the town.  We are asking the 
Planning & Zoning Commission to make a determination as to whether this revised site plan 
(dated June 13, 2024) meets the requirements of the Multi-family Housing Overlay Zone. We 
believe it does. To be clear, we are no longer proposing the site plans formerly submitted which 
had been referred to as “Option 1” and “Option 2”.  

Piece 2: 
Salisbury 
Housing Trust- 
2 houses 

Piece 3: 
Town-owned  

Piece 1: 
Town-owned  



We feel it is important to note that once we have a site plan that meets the town’s zoning 
requirements according to the Planning & Zoning Commission (PZC), this proposal will have to 
go to a Town Meeting for a vote on whether or not the town should donate the “Piece 2” 
portion of the land on the site plan that contains the two houses to the Salisbury Housing Trust 
or not. Obviously, if the PZC approves this revised site plan under the town’s multi-family 
housing overlay zone but then the town meeting decides not to donate this portion of the site 
to the Salisbury Housing Trust we would not be able to move forward with building these two 
homes. The reason to come to the Planning & Zoning Commission prior to the town meeting is 
that we want to bring a specific site plan proposal to the town meeting that we understand will 
meet the town’s zoning regulation requirements.  
 
The remainder of this memo responds specifically to “Follow-up from the Public Hearing of June 
3, 2024” submitted by Michael W. Klemens, PhD and posted on the town’s website on June 4, 
2024 and follows the same headings. 
 

1. Two lots or one 
 
It is our understanding that this parcel is one lot as shown on the attached survey done by Mat 
Kiefer in 2008. However, the confusion is understandable because according to the Tax 
Assessor records this parcel still shows up as two separate lots. According to the tax assessor 
(email dated June 10, 2024) as soon as the mylar is filed, the lots will be merged into one for 
the assessor’s purposes as well. This is expected to occur soon. In the meantime, we have 
completed title searches on each of the two lots (as they show up in the tax assessor records) 
and these searches do not show any deeded use restrictions on either lot. 
 

2. A-2 Survey 
 
An A-2 Survey was prepared by Mat Keifer and submitted to the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. It is also attached to this memo. 
 

3. Complete engineering 
 
Patrick R. Hackett, who is a Connecticut Registered Engineer, has prepared the revised site plan 
showing existing and proposed drainage patterns, driveways, accessways, parking areas, and 
other site improvements. 
 

4. Site Plan shall contain the following information: 
 
Please see the revised Site Plan dated June 13, 2024. 
 

5. Special Permit application 
 
The Salisbury Housing Trust is applying for a special permit to build two houses on one lot 
under Section 405- the Multi-Family Housing Overlay District.  The density calculation as 



allowed under this regulation is shown on the cover page of the revised site plan. We are 
requesting that the Planning and Zoning Commission provide a bonus density as allowed under 
405.4 (e) due to the fact that 100% of the housing units will be affordable.  
 

6. Aquifer Protection Overlay 
 
The Salisbury Housing Trust (SHT) is only applying for a special permit on the portion of the site 
(show above as “Piece 2”) that would be donated to the Salisbury Housing Trust if a town meeting 
decides to do so.  Page 5 of the revised site plan (page labeled “Stormwater Management” notes 
how this proposal meets the aquifer protection zone requirements and notes that no special 
permit approval will be required because: 

- We will be getting a building permit for the removal of any earth materials 
- There will not be above ground storage of hazardous materials 
- There will not be more than 30% impervious surfaces (revised site plan shows 11.5%) 
- We will retain more than 30% of the total lot areas in vegetative ground cover 
- We will not have on-site sewage disposal 
- We will not be handling and storing salt and de-icing materials 
- We will not be removing water for the purpose of sale or export 

 
 

7. Trees 
 

We have reviewed the memo from Mat Kiefer, Tree Warden for the Town of Salisbury dated June 
10, 2024.  It is our understanding from his assessment that the two large white oak trees on this 
site are in good health and should be around for several more decades. It was with this in mind 
that we prepared the revised site plan (dated June 13, 2024) which seeks to both retain and 
protect the trees while also providing two new affordable homeownership opportunities in our 
town.  
 




